
 

 
1. Call Meeting To Order - 7:00 a.m. 

 
 

2. Action Items 
a. Review and possibly approve the EOTEC Board minutes of September 2nd 

and September 12th. 
b. Discussion and possible approval of allocating space in the Northwest 

corner of the EOTEC property for the County/Fair to store items. 
c. Review and possibly approve a grant to Randy from Hermiston Horse 

Sale Extravaganza. 
 

3. Reports 
a. Budget and Fiscal 

i. Monthly Report 
b. Fundraising 
c. Hoteliers/Marketing 
d. Facilities 

i. Knerr Construction Barn Report 
e. Governance 
f. Operations 

4. Public Comment 
 

5. Next Meeting – October 14, 2016 @7:00am @ EOTEC. 

6. Adjourn 

Agenda   
September 30, 2016 

7:00 a.m. 
 

EOTEC Event Center 
1705 E. Airport Road 

Hermiston, OR  97838 



Present were Board Members Byron Smith, Dan Dorran, Ed Brookshier, Larry Givens, Vijay Patel, Larry Givens, 
Kim Puzey, and Don Miller (arrived at 7:01 am). Also present were Amy Palmer (arrived at 7:02 am), Heather 
Cannell, Lilly Alarcon-Strong, Jade McDowell of the East Oregonian, and members of the public. 

Chairman Byron Smith called the meeting to order at 7:00 am. 

Approve Minutes 
Ed moved and Dan seconded to approve the meeting minutes from June 24th, July 1st, July 15th, July 29th, August 
4th, and August 12th with an amendment to the July 15th minutes; correcting Vijay who made the motion to 
create a Construction Sub-Committee not Dan. Motion carried unanimously. 

(Don arrived 7:01 am) 

Rodeo Grounds General Contractor 
Byron stated Hendon Construction was the only bidder for the Rodeo Grounds. After reviewing the bid, legal 
counsel found some deficiencies that would need to be corrected and items that have potential to go over 
budget. Legal counsel recommends the Board not accept the bid until the deficiencies are corrected and a final 
bid is presented. 

(Amy arrived 7:02 am) 

Dan moved and Ed seconded to authorize the Construction Sub-Committee to work directly with Hendon 
Construction as the low bidder to rectify deficiencies outlines by legal counsel. Kim amended the motion to 
authorize the subcommittee to award the contract once the deficiencies have been remedied. Both motions 
denied unanimously. 

Don moved and Ed seconded to authorize the Construction Sub-Committee to work with the low bidder, 
Hendon Construction, regarding deficiencies in their bid and report back to the Board, during a special meeting, 
for authorization to move forward. Motion carried unanimously. 

Work Session 
Dan stated he recommends the Board come together for a work session during the first or second week of 
October. Ideally, the work session would be on a Saturday, but can be any day during the week as well and be 
expected to run most of the day.  
The work session would cover: 

• The History of EOTEC
• Why and how it was formed
• Expectations for August 2017
• What needs to be done
• Budget Review of Capital and Operating Budgets
• Standing Committee Review- to add or remove committees and make sure they are functional

committees, and etc.
Dan stated Byron does so much for this project and most everyone forgets he is not a staff member. 

Meeting Minutes 
September 2nd, 2016 

EOTEC 
1705 E. Airport Rd 

Board Members – Chairman Byron Smith, Vice Chairman Dan 
Dorran, Secretary/Treasurer Larry Givens, Board members    

Ed Brookshier, Vijay Patel, Kim Puzey and Don Miller. 



Byron recommended that work session include City and County staffing issues. 

Dan agreed, and said the agenda can include all items for the good of the order. Dan moved and Don seconded 
to schedule a work session. Motion carried unanimously. 

It was recommended that a Doodle Poll be sent out to establish the best day to meet for the entire Board. 

Knerr Construction- Barn and Site Project Schedule  
John Eckhardt from Knerr Construction presented the Board with the Design and Bid Schedule for the Barn and 
other site projects to include: 

• New Barns
• Landscaping/Irrigation
• Perimeter Fencing
• Site Electrical
• Commons Area Paving
• Signage & Amenities
• Food Court Structure
• Exhibitor Staging.

Dan stated a meeting will be scheduled for the end of September to come up with different trailer options for 
the food court structures. 

Byron stated the Sub-Committee is also prioritizing the exhibitor staging area. 

Dan asked what the status of the potable water is. 

Kim asked what landscaping design elements would be used for the bio swales and if the damaged fence would 
be replaced. 

Vijay asked if Knerr Construction could provide the Board with a monthly power point progress report of each 
project. 

John stated they had not addressed the potable water issue, but will be considering it as it needs to be resolved. 
The bio swales will most likely have rocks, grasses, shrubs and trees in them and they would look into repairing 
the damaged fence.  

Byron stated he would work with John on a presentation format for the monthly reports. 

Reports 
Budget and Fiscal- Amy stated although the disbursement request had been approved via email on 08/26/2016 
because there was no meeting at the end of the month of August, the Board is still asked to ratify the 
disbursements in an open meeting.  Dan moved and Don seconded to ratify the August disbursement. Motion 
carried unanimously. Larry moved and Dan seconded to approve the monthly financial report as presented by 
Amy Palmer. Motion carried unanimously.  

Byron stated financial Reports will be emailed after the meeting. 

Fundraising-Dennis stated the Fundraising Committee is waiting to see what the bid amounts will be so they can 
assess if additional funds need to be raised.   

Dave stated there are donors who would like to help and be involved in the donor wall recognition process. 
Please let him know when this is underway so those individuals can be contacted. 



Byron stated this had been a prior request and it will be honored.  

Facilities- Byron stated the City’s Planning Commission will hold a variance hearing on Wednesday, September 
14th at 7:00pm at City Hall for EOTEC’s required parking, and encourages all Board members, as well as, 
members from other committees and boards to attend. 

Heather stated signage had been placed on the front of the Event Center, and hopes everyone had seen it 
driving in and likes it. Heather presented the Board with a breakdown of profit and loss for various events and 
the costs of FFE. Because there is money in the FFE Budget, Heather would like to order plates and silverware. 
Heather stated the Event Center is being rented out more during the week by Good Shephard, Head Start, and 
other organizations.  

Dan asked if a concession or vendor fee had been set up. 

Heather stated no, and is something that would need to be addressed. Heather stated the operating system is in 
the process of being reconfigured. It is a very functional system and expects to have another training day to go 
over the updates. There are some security concerns regarding the Community Calendar that the IT department 
is working through, but should be complete by next week. 

Larry asked if there was a refundable security deposit. 

Vijay asked if a dishwasher had been purchased. 

Heather stated there is a refundable security deposit. A dishwasher is currently being leased for $75.00 a month. 
This price includes all chemicals and monthly routine maintenance. The payments are being made from the 
operational budget. Three bids were received to purchase a dishwasher but Heather felt the leasing option was 
best suited. 

Vijay agreed and encouraged the Board to continue with the leasing option. 

Comments 
George Anderson asked that Heather please print off or include in the agenda packet items that she is 
presenting to the Board so the public can view them as well. 

Gay Newman stated although everyone has been doing a great job with EOTEC, the previous Fair and Rodeo had 
been built with volunteer work. Those people would like to volunteer and are getting discouraged and losing 
interest in the project. Gay also recommended updating the website with current construction information and 
not waiting on signage to be put up as many people don’t even know where EOTEC is located. By having signage 
go up, at least people can drive in and look at the center and site.   

John stated as a requirement, because there are state and federal dollars attached to the project, prevailing 
wages must be paid and volunteers cannot be tied into the project. But will look into ways where volunteer 
opportunities can be utilized. 

Don stated is could be discussion topic at the work session. 

Kim suggested the Board use Funland Park, funding and volunteerism, as an example of what EOTEC can do, and 
place Volunteerism on the agenda under “Reports” to keep it in the minds of the Board. 

Next meeting –The next regular meeting will be Friday, September 30th, 2016 @ 7:00 am at EOTEC located at 
1705 E. Airport Road, Hermiston. 

Adjourned- at 7:52 am. 



Present were Board Members Byron Smith, Dan Dorran, Ed Brookshier, Vijay Patel,  Kim Puzey, and Don Miller. 
Larry Givens was excused. Also present were Heather Cannell, Nate Rivera, Lilly Alarcon-Strong, Jade McDowell 
of the East Oregonian, Jennifer Colton of KOHU, and members of the public. 

Chairman Byron Smith called the meeting to order at 1:00 pm. 

Rodeo Grounds General Contractor 
Byron stated the Construction Subcommittee met with Hendon Construction to correct the deficiencies that 
were in the original bid documents and recommend that the Board award the contract to Hendon Construction. 
The contract came in at budget, but that leaves both add-alternates (lighting and restrooms) out of the bid. 
Byron encourages the contractor to find ways to add value engineering to bring the price down to be able to add 
in pieces to the project. Dan moved and Vijay seconded to award Hendon Construction the Rodeo Construction 
Bid. Motion carried unanimously. 

Planning Variance 
Ed reminded the Board and all those who are involved in the Fair and Rodeo to attend the Planning Commission 
meeting Wednesday, at 7:00 pm to discuss and give recommendations for parking considerations. Ed stated, if 
possible, he would like to hold off on this issue until after the first year of the Fair and Rodeo (2017) to be able 
to compare where EOTEC is after the first year of operation.  

Dan agreed. 

Byron stated the original variance special use permit forbids EOTEC from using two pieces of the three venues at 
the same time except for the Fair and Rodeo, this variance, if approved, would allow more than one venue to be 
used at a time. The variance also asks EOTEC to do some improved parking for overflow parking on Airport Road. 
Perhaps EOTEC inform the Planning Commission on their intensions for shuttle services to have some off-site 
parking, and ask that they give EOTEC one year to get these plans established.   

After some discussion Byron stated he feels it would be a good idea to have Board members and participants 
attend the meeting if possible to answer any questions the Planning Commission might have. 

Storage 
Don asked that the Board consider the NW corner of the property be fenced off for equipment and storage. If 
the Board is supportive of this, he will come back to the Board with a formalized plan at the next meeting. 

There was no opposition from the Board. 

Barn Progress 
Ed asked when the Board would expect to see a report on the Barns. 

Byron stated he believes the barns will be placed to bid in the next week. Byron stated the Sub-Committee 
meets with Knerr every Tuesday morning and working with LRS as well.  

Special Meeting Minutes 
September 12th, 2016 

EOTEC 
1705 E. Airport Rd 

Board Members – Chairman Byron Smith, Vice Chairman Dan 
Dorran, Secretary/Treasurer Larry Givens, Board members    

Ed Brookshier, Vijay Patel, Kim Puzey and Don Miller. 



Mike Kay stated he believes a construction time line could be presented to the Board by the next Board meeting 
of September 30th.   

Comments 
Kim stated he has been speaking with Good Shepherd Heath Foundation and they would like to contribute 
to EOTEC, but the contribution must be Heath, Well Being, or Quality of Life related. Kim asked that the Board 
look for ways this could be accomplished.   

Board Work Session 
Byron stated he is still waiting on Kim and Larry to respond, but believes Friday, October 28th will work for the 
entire Board. 

Next meeting –The next regular meeting will be Friday, September 30th, 2016 @ 7:00 am at EOTEC located at 
1705 E. Airport Road, Hermiston. 

Adjourned- at 1:16 pm. 























MGT 335 Event Security Planning 
for Public Safety Professionals

Event Security Planning for Public Safety Professionals is a 16-hour course 
designed to educate small and rural community public safety personnel, 
as well as local officials, regarding security concerns and considerations 
involved with planning any event. This course enables participants to 
recognize and plan adequate strategies and security measures to prevent 
or mitigate security incidents which may occur during scheduled events.  
The course reinforces the importance and magnitude of security planning 
required to execute a safe and effective event regardless of the size.  

Topics covered include but are not limited to:

• guiding principles for event security

• fundamentals of risk assessment (risk, threat, and vulnerability
assessments)

• key components of event security planning such as MOAs, emer-
gency action plans, resource requirements, communications, etc.

• role of actionable security intelligence

• decision-based video scenarios to practice planning for potential
incidents, hazards, and exposures

• event planning exercise

*Please note all foreign nationals need to complete a Department of
Homeland Security Foreign National Visitor Request Form in order to 
attend this course. 

Registration

Register for your FEMA Student Identification number at:
https://cdp.dhs.gov/femasid

For information about course content or how to obtain a DHS 
Foreign National Visitor Request Form contact the RDPC at: 
helpdesk@ruraltraining.org or 877-855-RDPC (7372)

http://training.fema.gov/is/courseoverview.aspx?code=IS-700.a
mailto:thomas.roberts@umatillacounty.net
https://www.ruraltraining.org/training/schedule/2016-11-17-mgt335-hermiston-or-001/

	EOTEC Agenda 09302016
	EOTEC Mins 09022016
	EOTEC Mins 09122016
	09302016 Storage Map
	09302016 Financial Report
	09302016 MGT 335 Registration Flyer - Hermiston OR_Nov 17-18 2016

	Delivery Date: Thursday-Friday,                                November 17-18, 2016
	Registration Deadline:: Registration Deadline: November 3, 2016
	Deadline/Contact copy: Please sign-up no later than **Thursday, November 3, 2016** as a minimum of 20 registrations must be received by this date to confirm the class will be held. Should you have any questions regarding the local jurisdiction or directions to the facility please contact Thomas Roberts, 541-966-3706 (p), thomas.roberts@umatillacounty.net, 541-278-5496 (fax).
	Sponsored by: Training Sponsored by:
	Sponsor Name: Umatilla County Emergency Management
	Training Site: Training Site
	Address: Eastern Oregon Trade and Event Center (EOTEC) - Room #11705 East Airport Road, Hermiston, OR 97838Sign-In: 7:30amClass Times: 8:00am-5:00pm
	Prerequisites: Prerequisites: U.S. Citizenship; working knowledge of NIMS & ICS;                        review of IS-700 (http://emilms.fema.gov/IS700a)
	Cost: Training offered at NO COST 
	Certificates: **Students who successfully complete training will receive an RDPC certificate in the mail approximately 4-5 weeks after training.
	Link: Click here to register online or visit www.ruraltraining.org


